NON-CONFIDENTIAL

Marmion House,
Lichfield Street, Tamworth,
Staffordshire B79 7BZ.

Enquiries: 01827 709 709
Facsimile: 01827 709 271

CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

17 August 2020

Dear Councillor

A Meeting of the Corporate Scrutiny Committee will be held in Online Meeting on
Tuesday, 25th August, 2020 at 6.00 pm. Members of the Committee are requested to
attend.

Yours faithfully
}&Q\/’/_,‘_,.www————'———""’
Chief Executive
AGENDA

NON CONFIDENTIAL

1 Apologies for Absence
2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 20)

To receive the minutes of the meetings on:
e 31% January 2020;
e 15" July 2020; and
e 28" July 2020

3 Declarations of Interest




10

To receive any declarations of Members’ interests (personal and/or
personal and prejudicial) in any matters which are to be considered at this
meeting.

When Members are declaring a personal interest or personal and
prejudicial interest in respect of which they have dispensation, they should
specify the nature of such interest. Members should leave the room if they
have a personal and prejudicial interest in respect of which they do not
have a dispensation.

Chair's Update
Responses to Reports of the Corporate Scrutiny Committee

To receive an update on responses received to reports of the Corporate Scrutiny
Committee.

Forward Plan

Discussion item — Link to the Forward Plan

http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=120&RD=0

Quarter One 2020/21 Performance Report (Pages 21 - 80)
(Report of the Leader of the Council)

Local Council Tax Reduction Report 2021/22 (Scrutiny) (Pages 81 - 86)

(Report of the Portfolio Holder for Assets and Finance)

Corporate Scrutiny Committee Work Plan (Pages 87 - 88)

To consider the Committee’s Work Plan.

Exclusion of the Press and Public

To consider excluding the Press and Public from the meeting by passing the
following resolution:-

“That in accordance with the provisions of the Local Authorities (Executive
Arrangements) (Meeting and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012,
and Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be
excluded from the meeting during the consideration of the following business on
the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined
in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public interest in
withholding the information outweighs the public interest in disclosing the
information to the public”

At the time this agenda is published no representations have been received that
this part of the meeting should be open to the public


http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=120&RD=0

11 Update On Solway (Tamworth) Limited (Pages 89 - 92)
(Report of the Chief Executive)

Access arrangements

If you have any particular access requirements when attending the meeting, please contact
Democratic Services on 01827 709267 or e-mail democratic-services@tamworth.gov.uk. We can
then endeavour to ensure that any particular requirements you may have are catered for.

Filming of Meetings

The public part of this meeting may be filmed and broadcast. Please refer to the Council’s
Protocol on Filming, Videoing, Photography and Audio Recording at Council meetings which can
be found here for further information.

The Protocol requires that no members of the public are to be deliberately filmed. Where
possible, an area in the meeting room will be set aside for videoing, this is normally from the front
of the public gallery. This aims to allow filming to be carried out whilst minimising the risk of the
public being accidentally filmed.

If a member of the public is particularly concerned about accidental filming, please consider the
location of any cameras when selecting a seat.

FAQs

For further information about the Council’s Committee arrangements please see the FAQ page
here

To Councillors: T Jay, B Price, R Bilcliff, S Goodall, M Oates, Dr S Peaple, P Standen,
M Summers and P Thurgood


mailto:democratic-services@tamworth.gov.uk
https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/councillors_docs/TBC-Filming-Protocol.docx
https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/council-meetings-faqs

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE

CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
HELD ON 28th JULY 2020

PRESENT: Councillor T Jay (Chair), Councillors B Price, R Bilcliff, S Goodall,
M Oates, Dr S Peaple, P Standen, M Summers and P Thurgood

CABINET

The following officers were present: Tracey Pointon (Legal Admin & Democratic
Services Manager), Sarah McGrandle (Assistant Director Operations and
Leisure), Lynne Pugh (Assistant Director Finance), Anica Goodwin (Executive
Director Organisation) and Gareth Youlden, Jodie Small (Legal, Democratic and
Corporate Support Assistant)

14 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies for absence
15 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.
16 CHAIR'S UPDATE

Nothing to update other than to thank all for attending the meeting at short notice
and everyone’s attendance is appreciated.

17 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED:

That members of the press and public be now excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following item on the grounds that the business involves the

1
Page 5



18

19

Corporate Scrutiny Committee 28 July 2020

likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 3 of Part 1 of
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

(Moved by Councillor M Summers and seconded by Councillor R Bilcliff)

INITIAL IMPACT OF THE PANDEMIC ON THE COUNCIL'S BUSINESS AIMS

Report of the Portfolio Holder for Heritage and Growth to provide members with
information regarding the initial impact of the pandemic on council’s business
aims. Further, the report identifies an immediate business need to make a
decision on the future delivery of arts and events in the borough including all
associated operations of the Assembly Rooms and the Castle.

The committee discussed the report and moved a motion to make a further
recommendation to Cabinet

The Scrutiny Committee recommend that:

Cabinet look at the longer term financial finances of the Heritage assets for
Tamworth.

(Moved by Councillor Dr. S Peaple and seconded by Councillor S Goodall)
PROGRESS REPORT ON TAMWORTH ASSEMBLY ROOMS

The Report of the Portfolio for Heritage and Growth was presented to the
Corporate Scrutiny Committee to give the Committee the opportunity to review
the Cabinet Progress Report on Tamworth Assembly Rooms which is being
considered by Cabinet on 30th July.

The committee considered the report and moved a motion to make three further
recommendations to Cabinet.

Corporate Scrutiny Committee

recommend that:

1. Cabinet agrees Corporate Scrutiny have a formal role in the
management process for all future projects worth over one million
pounds and any other projects deemed to be of importance to the
reputation of the council;

2. Cabinet create a minimum governance structure and create project
guidelines for staff for any future projects and

3. Cabinet thanks officer’s for the efforts to deliver the Assembly Rooms

Project to completion and for providing a thorough report to Corporate
Scrutiny.

2
Page 6



Corporate Scrutiny Committee 28 July 2020

(Moved by Councillor M Summers and Seconded by Councillor Dr S
Peaple)

Chair

3
Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



10

11

& <P
& SUATAUAUANANA
'Ulnnnunz‘

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE

CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
HELD ON 15th JULY 2020

PRESENT: Councillor TJay (Chair), Councillors R Bilcliff, S Goodall,
M Oates, Dr S Peaple, P Standen, M Summers and P Thurgood

The following officers were present. Anica Goodwin (Executive Director
Organisation), Stefan Garner (Executive Director Finance), Lynne Pugh
(Assistant Director Finance), Tracey Pointon (Legal Admin & Democratic
Services Manager) and Jo Hutchison (Democratic Services, Scrutiny and
Elections Officer)

Apologies received from: Councillor(s) B Price

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the meeting held on 17™ June 2020 were approved as a correct
record.

(Moved by Councillor P Standen and seconded by Councillor Dr S Peaple)
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

CHAIR'S UPDATE

The Chair reported that following further discussions he would be proposing that
the Assembly Rooms report be brought to an additional meeting of this committee
later this month.

2020/21 FORWARD PLAN

The committee discussed the appropriate time for it to receive details of write offs
given the current COVID-19 pandemic and it was considered that a meeting in
Quarter 2 or 3 of this year could be identified and the item added to the work plan

accordingly.

CAPITAL OUTTURN REPORT

1
Page 9



12

Corporate Scrutiny Committee 15 July 2020

The Chair welcomed the Executive Director, Finance and the Assistant Director,
Finance who were attending this meeting for this item and invited them to provide
a brief overview of the Capital Outturn Report which had been considered by
Cabinet at its meeting on 9™ July 2020.

The Capital Outturn Report advised members of the final outturn of the Authority’s
Capital Programme for 2019/20 (subject to audit confirmation) and requested
formal approval from Cabinet to re-profile specific budgets into 2020/21. The
Committee noted that Councillor Dr S Peaple had submitted questions and
received answers from Cabinet on the content of that report, as set out in minute
7 of the 9 July 2020 Cabinet meeting. Cabinet approved the recommendations
are set out in the report.

The Committee sought and received clarifications in the following areas:

e GDPR Compliance (contingency) — it was confirmed that whilst European
law had introduced this legislation, it would continue in UK law.

e Refurbishment of Marmion House Reception — whilst this work had been
currently paused, an assessment would be required around the access for
vulnerable people to services.

e Re-profiling of s106 spend was monitored carefully to minimise the risk that
funds would be required to be returned.

e Utilisation of the property funds and the proposed re-profiling. The
Executive Director, Finance reported that careful monitoring of these funds
was undertaken. The Committee considered that prior to further
investments under existing delegations being made a review be carried
out.

RESOLVED that it be recommended to Cabinet that a review of property funds be
undertaken and it was suggested that such review be scrutinised by the Audit &
Governance Committee, before any further investments under existing
delegations were made.

(Moved by Councillor Dr S Peaple and seconded by Councillor S Goodall).
The Chair thanked the Officers for their attendance.
MEMBER TRAINING UPDATE

The Chair welcomed the Executive Director, Organisation who attended the
meeting for this item.

The Executive Director highlighted that this report provided an update to the
Committee on member training activities since March 2020, particularly focussed
on the impact and response to COVID-19 from a member training perspective.

This update supplemented the Member Induction, Training and MemberZone
Report attached as Appendix 1 to the report, which was published with the
agenda for the Corporate Scrutiny Committee meeting dated 25 March 2020,
which was cancelled due to COVID-19.

2
Page 10



Corporate Scrutiny Committee 15 July 2020

The Committee considered and largely supported the recommendations in the
report with some amendments, particularly in relation to the publication of details
related to member training.

RESOLVED that the following be recommended to Cabinet:

1. The impact of COVID-19 on member training, and in particular on the
need to deliver training (online only) for the use of new IT systems and
new processes to successfully deliver remote meetings, be recognised.
This included the delivery for all Councillors as well as focussed training
for Chairs and Vice-Chairs by an external trainer as well as extensive
internal training.

2. The member induction programme for 2021/22 be reviewed, updated
and implemented, noting that:
2.1the schedule of induction events should be made available to all

election agents as early as possible before election day;

2.2any initial ICT training of newly elected members should be
undertaken on a 1-2-1 basis;

2.3 the importance of the induction training should be emphasised to all
new members; in particular Safeguarding and Data Protection /
Fol.

3. The member training programme be reviewed, updated and
implemented, noting that:
3.1the schedule of training sessions should be made available to all

councillors prior to the start of the municipal year, or as soon as
reasonably practicable thereafter;

3.2 options to consider training sessions at alternative times of the day
(day time / twilight / full day conferences) were not generally
supported by the members who responded to the survey;

3.3shorter and interactive training sessions were recommended where
practical;

3.4 refresher IT training is available to all interested members and
members should be encouraged to contact ICT support to arrange
1-2-1 support;

3.5training relevant to specific committee members such as planning,
licensing and audit & governance should be scheduled to support
members’ attendance prior to members making decisions at such
committees;

3.6 whilst prior to COVID-19, the use of online training as an alternative
to face-to-face training was generally not supported, the need to
find alternative delivery methods during COVID-19 had
demonstrated that some forms of online training are fully effective
and should be incorporated going forwards;

3.7members who responded to the questionnaire considered that the
training programme covered the correct topics, although some
members requested more formal training, perhaps utilising external
training bodies;

3.8all members who responded to the questionnaire, felt that the
training programme had helped them understand their role and
responsibilities as a Councillor and the work of the Council.

3
Page 11



13

Corporate Scrutiny Committee

15 July 2020

4.

All members be reminded of the importance of attending training
sessions and in particular members of the regulatory committees,
additionally, all members be reminded of the importance of attending
scheduled regulatory training sessions. Attendance at regulatory
training sessions by members of the regulatory committees to be
recorded on the Council’s website.

Planning training to be mandatory for all members given all members
involvement in the Local Plan. Remote training and online training
options to be made available to facilitate this.

New members to be actively encouraged to attend the Local
Government Association regional event for new councillors.

New members to be invited to an introductory meeting with the Leader
of the Council and the Mayor.

Members to be encouraged to access and use MembersZone regularly
which will continue to be updated and the content widened.
Democratic Services, the ICT team and Customer Services be thanked
for their role in supporting Councillors in the implementation of remote

Council and Committee meetings.

(Moved by Councillor Dr S Peaple and seconded by Councillor M Summers)

CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PLAN

The Committee considered its work plan, and agreed that an additional meeting
should be held on 28™ July 2020 to consider the Assembly Rooms item and that
the work plan should be updated as follows:

Corporate Scrutiny Work Plan

Work Plan 2020 - 2021

TARGET
MEETING
DATE

SUBJECT

MEETING WHEN
ITEM ADDED TO
WORK PLAN

28" July 2020

The Assembly Rooms —review of
project

November 2019

25" August Quarter 1 2020/21 Quarterly

2020 Performance Report

25™ August Local Council Tax Reduction November 2019

2020 Scheme 2021 onwards - revisit (date change -
June 2020)

25" August Solway Trading Company update December 2019

2020 (date added -June

2020)

10™ December
2020

Review of Legal Services (post
implementation)

November 2019

4
Page 12




Corporate Scrutiny Committee

15 July 2020

10™ December
2020

Quarter 2 2020/21 Quarterly
Performance Report

3" February
2021

Quarter 3 2020/21 Quarterly
Performance Report

Quarter 4 Asset Management update December 2019
2020/21
Dates to be agreed
TBC Market tender progress Update August 2019
TBC Parking Toolkit review October 2019
TBC Housing Repairs & Investment November 2019
Contract Review
TBC Solway Trading Company Update December 2019
(2x per year)
TBC Gungate Masterplan January 2020
TBC Review of Cabinet decisions over June 2020
previous 12 month period (circulate
to members post June meeting for
comment)
TBC Review of Write-Offs July 2020

Upcoming Corporate Scrutiny Committee Meetings

28 July 2020 (new)
25 August 2020
8 October 2020

19 November 2020
10 December 2020

3 February 2021

11 March 2021

Chair

5
Page 13




This page is intentionally left blank



70

4l

72

73

& <P
& SUATAUAUANANA
'Ulnnnunz‘

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE

CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
HELD ON 30th JANUARY 2020

PRESENT: Councillor TJay (Chair), Councillors B Price, R Bilcliff,
R Claymore, R Ford, S Goodall, Dr S Peaple, P Standen and
M Summers

CABINET Councillor R Pritchard and Councillor J Oates.

The following officers were present: Andrew Barratt (Chief Executive), Rob
Barnes (Executive Director Communities), Anna Miller (Assistant Director —
Growth & Regeneration), Paul Weston (Assistant Director Assets), Rebecca Neill
(Head of Audit & Governance and Monitoring Officer) and Jo Hutchison
(Democratic Services, Scrutiny and Elections Officer)

There were no apologies.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The Minutes of the meeting held on 5™ December 2019 were approved and
signed as a correct record.

(Moved by Councillor Dr S Peaple and seconded by Councillor M Summers)
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

CHAIR'S UPDATE

The Chair reminded members that all Councillors had been invited to a Housing
Disrepairs & Investment Contractors Members presentation on 12th February
2020.

RESPONSES TO REPORTS OF THE CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
The Chair reported that the update on the Cleaning Services review which had
been requested at the 5" December 2019 Committee meeting had been

circulated to all members.

Members confirmed that they had no further comments on this matter.

1
Page 15



74

75

76

77

Corporate Scrutiny Committee 30 January 2020

CONSIDERATION OF MATTERS REFERRED TO THE CORPORATE
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FROM CABINET / COUNCIL

No items had been referred to this Committee.
WORKING GROUP UPDATES

The Chair updated the Committee on the work that had been undertaken by the
QPR Executive Summary working group and reported that the proposed
summary report had been included on the agenda for the next Corporate Scrutiny
Committee meeting on 5" February 2020 and would be discussed at that
meeting.

The Chair reported that his discussions continued on the utilisation of scoping
documents and that he would bring forward an item on this matter, if required.

2019/20 FORWARD PLAN

No further items from the Forward Plan were identified for this Committee’s
consideration at this time.

REVIEW OF HOUSING GARAGE SITES

The Committee received the Report of the Portfolio Holder for Assets and
Finance on the Review of Housing Garage Sites and the Chair welcomed the
Portfolio Holder, the Executive Director Communities and the Assistant Director
Assets to the meeting.

The report set out the project plan for the review of housing garage sites. The
Portfolio Holder reported that a desktop exercise had been undertaken and two
work streams identified.

Members of the Committee sought clarification on:

e the lack of engagement with all ward councillors in the desk top exercise.
The Portfolio Holder reported that this was a Cabinet project which at a
later stage would involve all ward councillors in the process. The Portfolio
Holder reported that the project was currently at an early stage.

e the lack of detail within the report on the issues which led to this review.

The Chair asked that the Portfolio Holder and Officers consider the comments
made in terms of the contents of the report.

RESOLVED that the Committee endorsed the project plan for review of the
housing garage sites.

(Moved by Councillor M Summers and seconded by Councillor B Price)
In accordance with Rule 12.5 (Right to require individual vote to be recorded) of

Schedule 1 (Non-Regulatory Procedure Rules), Councillors P Standen, Dr S
Peaple and R Bilcliff voted against the above motion.

2
Page 16



78

Corporate Scrutiny Committee 30 January 2020

The Portfolio Holder for Assets and Finance, the Executive Director, Communities
and the Assistant Director, Assets left the meeting.

GUNGATE UPDATE

The Committee received the report of the Chief Executive which provided an
update to the Committee on the progress on the Gungate Masterplan
programme.

The Chair welcomed the Portfolio Holder for Growth and Regeneration, the Chief
Executive and the Assistant Director, Growth and Regeneration to the meeting.

The Chief Executive reported that the council had purchased the precinct site a
few years ago as an investment opportunity with regeneration potential. The
basis of the council purchasing the site was the regeneration opportunity in that
part of town. The Chief Executive reported that Cabinet had approved a
preferred draft masterplan and authorised the Chief Executive and his team to
enter into discussions and prepare and submit funding applications. In addition
consultants were appointed who have produced a preferred option. The
masterplan had identified various sites which were suitable for different uses,
however, the overall plan had retained flexibility to ensure that opportunities could
be maximised as it was reported that one criteria for the council was to ensure
that the project delivered an appropriate return on the council’s investment.

The Chief Executive reported that discussions with Staffordshire County Council,
who own a site adjacent to council owned property, had been positive and the
council has had discussions with other landowners on the site and whilst
discussions with some landowners were underway discussions with one
landowner had not progressed as well, such that other methods were being
considered, including the consideration of the use of a compulsory purchase
order.

The Chief Executive reported that the master planning process needed to be
considered by scrutiny and then Cabinet and then proceed to public consultation.
In terms of timing, consultation on the Gungate Masterplan was not expected to
commence until after the May elections.

The Chief Executive reported that the key issues for the Council were timing in
terms of land assembly and the viability of the project, in terms of achieving
necessary funding.

The Committee sought and received clarification in the following areas:

¢ the facilitation of electric vehicle charging in any new multi-storey car park,
the principle of which the Chief Executive supported.

¢ the interaction between the Gungate project and the Future High Street
Fund project. The Chief Executive reported that there was no overlap
between these two projects and that the Gungate project was a stand-
alone scheme, however the Gungate scheme would demonstrate the
Council’'s commitment to Tamworth’s high street and show that

3
Page 17



79

Corporate Scrutiny Committee 30 January 2020

interventions were being planned in Gungate which would help support the
growth of the town. The Assistant Director reported that the two schemes
complement one another and whilst the rules for the development of the
business case for the Future High Street fund application were strict, the
costs and benefits being delivered by the Gungate scheme could be
reported as part of the Future High Street Fund project. The Portfolio
Holder reminded members that the Future High Street Fund was a
competitive process with other local authorities and the Gungate project
helped to make Tamworth’s application more competitive.

e whether Officers had seen any evidence of the easing of the Green Book
rules in their application to this project which the Prime Minister had
recently announced. The Assistant Director reported that it was not
expected that there would be any changes before the submission of the
outline submission in mid March 2020, but it was possible that there could
be changes prior to the final submission to Government.

e the potential timing and cost implications involved with any potential legal
process to fully assemble the land. It was reported that the project was
planned to be developed in a staged process which would allow some
flexibility.

e the engagement process with all councillors. The Portfolio Holder and the
Chief Executive recognised the importance for all councillors to be involved
in this major undertaking. It was agreed that a seminar involving all
members (anticipated May 2020) would be held prior to Cabinet to provide
an opportunity to view and comment on proposals. The members seminar
would be followed by consideration at a scrutiny committee (anticipated
June 2020) where recommendations to Cabinet could be proposed.
Following any Cabinet approval the Masterplan would be issued for public
consultation.

The Portfolio Holder for Heritage and Growth, the Chief Executive, the Assistant
Director, Growth and Regeneration and Councillor R Ford left the meeting.

CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PLAN

The Chair reported that he proposed to change the date of the March meeting
from 12th March. The Chair reported that the preferred date to move this meeting
to would be Wednesday 25th March 2020 and he canvassed members’ views on
this revised date. Councillor Dr S Peaple reported that he would not be able to
attend a meeting on the revised date. Advice was sought as to whether this
would affect his attendance which it was confirmed that it would. Following
confirmation that other members were available for that date, the Chair reported
that the meeting would be rescheduled to 25th March.

The items on the Work Plan were considered and it was agreed as follows:

e Member Support working group (member communications) — Councillors S
Goodall and Dr S Peaple to revisit and consider whether to bring an
update to 25th March meeting.

e 12 month review of Cabinet decisions — the Chair and scrutiny officer to
produce a summary of the Cabinet decisions over last 12 months for

4
Page 18



Corporate Scrutiny Committee

30 January 2020

circulation to members. The Leader to be invited to attend 25th March

meeting.

e (Gungate Masterplan to be added to a meeting in June 2020 (date to be

confirmed).

The Work Plan was amended as follows:

Corporate Scrutiny Work Plan

Work Plan 2019 - 2020

TARGET
MEETING
DATE

SUBJECT

MEETING WHEN
ITEM ADDED TO
WORK PLAN

5™ February
2020

QPR Q3 2019/20 Report

Regular item

5™ February
2020

Review of senior management
restructuring (update)

5™ February Working group report on QPR Report June 2019

2020 Executive Summary

25™ March Member Training update June 2019

2020

25™ March Member Support Working group —sub

2020 group on Member Communications

25™ March Review of Cabinet decisions over

2020 previous 12 month period

May 2020 Parking Toolkit review October 2019

June 2020 Gungate Masterplan January 2020

June 2020 Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme November 2019
2021 onwards - revisit

July 2020 Review of Legal Services (post November 2019

implementation)

August 2020

The Assembly Rooms - review of
project

November 2019

TBC Housing Repairs & Investment November 2019
Contract Review

TBC Solway Trading Company Update (2x December 2019
per year)

TBC Market tender progress Update August 2019

Quarter 4 2020

Asset Management update

December 2019

5
Page 19




Corporate Scrutiny Committee 30 January 2020

Upcoming Corporate Scrutiny Committee Meetings

25" March 2020 (moved from 12" March)

Chair

6
Page 20



CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMlTTEAgenda ltem 7/

TUESDAY, 25 AUGUST 2020

REPORT OF THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL

QUARTER ONE 2020/21 PERFORMANCE REPORT

EXEMPT INFORMATION
None
PURPOSE

To provide Corporate Scrutiny Committee with a performance update and financial
Healthcheck.

RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that:

e Corporate Scrutiny Committee endorses the contents of this report

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This report contains the following sections:
e Corporate projects summary

General fund — actual spend summary
Universal credit summary

Corporate plan actions and corporate risks,

Impact of welfare benefit reforms on Council services,
Medium term financial strategy 2019/20 — 2024/25 monitoring,
Financial health-check.

hrwbE

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

In light of the projected impact of Covid-19 on the Council’s Medium Term Financial
Strategy (MTFS), an immediate suspension of all non-essential spending was
approved by Cabinet on 9th July and that managers review their budgets and identify
all non-essential spending for 2020/21 as part of the quarter one projections at 30
June 2020.

The budget review has identified savings of £1.2m towards the projected lost income
anticipated from the impact of Covid-19 of £1.8m — Cabinet will be asked to approve
that the budget to be revised to reflect the forecast overspend at Quarter 1 of £134Kk,
financed from a contribution from the transformation reserve.

Page 21



LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND
There are none.

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

There are none.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

There are none.

REPORT AUTHOR

John Day

APPENDICES

Quarter one 2020/21 performance report.

Page 22



Sections in the report

1. Corporate plan actions and corporate risks,
2. Impact of welfare benefit reform.

3. Medium term financial strategy,

4. Financial health-check.

List of appendices

Appendix 1 2019 to 2022 Corporate Plan actions update,

Appendix 2 Corporate Risk Register 2020/21,

Appendix A General Fund & Housing Revenue Account main variances,
Appendix B Capital programme monitoring,

Appendix C Treasury management update.

Page 23



Corporate Projects Summary
Corporate Project
Review of Corporate Capital Strategy

Priority Review - Cleaners

Priority Review - Leisure Services
Risk Management Strategy

Implement Customer Portal

I@ Strategy
«Q
D

PWYanisational Development Strategy

Completion of new council housing at Tinkers Green and Kerria
Welfare Reform
Housing Strategy

Allocations Policy
Leisure Strategy

Opening of the refurbished Assembly Rooms

Town Centre Programme

Due Date RAG

Status

31st March
2021

TBA (was Q

30th April
2020)

31st March
2021

31st July A

2020

August A

2020
TBA

>

TBA

31st
December
2020

31st
December
2020

31st
October
2020

10th June
2020

30th June
2022

> O 00

31st March

(U (<

Commentary

The implementation phase has been delayed due to Covid-19. It is unlikely that implementation
will progress until matters relating to Covid-19 have stabilised.

Apart from one element the policy is, subject to approval, ready to be released to Audit and
Governance Committee.

Covid- 19 has impacted progress.
The final knowledge transfers have recently concluded.

No further progress due to Covid -19 with priority being given to remote council meetings,
catching up on business plan activities including completion of Windows 10/Office 2016 rollout,
infrastructure upgrade projects, laptop and PC refresh programmes.

Revised programme in place following site closures due to Covid-19. Revised completion now
December 2020.

Due to the impact of Covid-19 anticipated completion is now the end of October 2020.

Project completed.

Project completed.



Corporate Project

Key to Symbols

Due Date

2022

RAG
Status

Commentary

RAG Status

Overall Project Status

V]

Project on track and in control

A

Project not on track but in control

Project not on track

Gz abed




General Fund — Actual Spend

Chief Executive - ]
£7 000,000.00
o /i\m\
rpkeb“” & a@“’ @i? k
"I- "5“9 c;- 0

@ Quarterty values  -# Quartsriy Targst

Undarspand 1o date on Wastz Managemeni and Eleclions.

AD Operations & Leisure a

£7,500,000.00
£5,000,000.00
£2,500,000.00

£0.00

& @@ Nq'-a#‘ @ﬁ@ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁé‘&
¢ F F o o F

@ Quarterty valuse -8 Quartariy Targst

OVEMEPEN to date dug o Closure of ASEEMDIY Rooms and large
orders placed for highwaye malnisnance In guarier ane 1o be
compisted during te year.

AD Growth & Regeneration [2]
£3,000,000.00
£2,000,000.00
£1,000,000.00
£0.00 . - .
SIS LS
6" o"-‘" & o & & &

@ GQuarterly Values  -e~ Guarterly Target

Reduced Income of £200k from Car Parking & £50k Caslle
quring quarter cne.

AD Partnerships -]

£2,000,000.00
£1,000,000.00

£0.00

Q.y“\«s r&&@‘gﬁﬁﬁ«s@ Q{Péﬁg

@ GQuarterly Values  -e Guarterly Target

Reduced incoma of £50k from Chvil Farking enforcament and
Efraet rading during quarter one.

ED Organisation - ]

E£750,000.00
£500,000.00
E£250,000.00
E0O0
LS ELLLS

@ «9&«90«9

@ quarterly Valuss -8 Quartsriy Targst

Mo Elgnificant varlance rapartad.

AD People
£3,000,000.00

£2,000,000.00
£1,000,000.00

£1.00

5 @@ 3-9#‘ @ﬁ@ﬁ@ﬁvﬁé‘ﬁ
o F o o o F o o

@ Quartery valuss -8 Quartarly Targst

Mo ElgniNcant vartance raparts.

AD Assets.
E000

-£1,000,000 .00

@ Quarterly Walues  -e~ Quarterly Target

Mo elgnificant varlance rapartad.

Key

Guarterly Value is the year to date position
Quarterly Target is the year to date budget

Page 26

ED Finance a
£400,000.00

£200,000.00

E0.00

@"“*“ @“’“ 1@“* @%ﬁ @*"p @*‘p &

@ Quarterly Valuss -8 Quartsrly Targst

Mo elgnificant varlance rapartad.

AD Finance -]
£5,000,000.00
£2,500,000.00
mi1“111vi
-£2,500,000.00 I
-£5,000,000.00

& 5 @N@ﬁ@ﬁ@ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ
- @ F o o

@ Quarterly valuss -8 Quartsrly Target

Additional grants recalved of ¢.£3.5m dug 1o Covid-19.

AD Neighbourhoods [1]
£32,000,000.00

@ Quarterly Walues  -e~ Quarterly Targst

Recedpt of ¢.£100k addilanal Homelessness funding.



Universal Credit Summary

Universal Credit elaimants in Tamworth [1] Council Tenants on Universal Credit [:]
10,000 1.500
7500
1.000
5,000
500
a . . a
Q2 201515 Q3 201518 Q4 201319 & 301230 Q2 2019020 Q5 2019/20 Q4 2019720 & 202021 Q2 201515 Q3 201819 Q4 201319 O 201920 Q2 20120 Q3 301920 Q4 201970 G4 2020721
commantary Commentary
Thera are &,132 unlversal cradit clalmants In Tamwarth. There ars 1,172 councl i2nants on unkversal credi

Page 27



1. Overview of corporate plan actions and corporate risks

The Executive Leadership Team identified projects from the Corporate Plan, the monitoring
of which would form the basis for this section of the quarterly performance report.

Project highlight reports for each of these are included at Appendix 1
Current RAG status of the key projects

Details on the Corporate Risk Register are included at Appendix 2
Corporate Risk Register 2020/21 heatmap

2020/21 Corporate Risk Register [: ]

)
=) ‘\'_““)

(=) (=
=/
DO O

Likelihood

Impact

2. Impact of Welfare Benefit Reform on Council services

Quarterly updates are presented to monitor the impact of welfare benefit reform changes on
Council services including customer demand via monitoring of calls/contacts together with
the financial impact of collection and demand for benefits and effect on income streams
such as rent, council tax and business rates.

This update also outlines the impact for the period since 1% April 2020, following
implementation of the measures to counter the Covid-19 pandemic.

Benefits

Similar levels of DHP claims to 2019/20 have been received for quarter one, 2020/21 but
DHP claims paid are higher at £46k (£13k higher than at June 2019 - £33k) - with 70
successful claims from 104 applications (compared to 72 successful claims from 158
applications at June 2019). There is a one week backlog (one week as at June 2019) of
claims still to be processed which may increase this figure.

Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme claims, at 5379, have increased by 28 since 31%
March 2020 — with a projected cost increase across all claims within the scheme of £411k to
£4.553m.

Live caseload figures are 240 higher than 2020/21 — currently 5,671 (following a reducing
annual trend — at June 2019 caseload was 5,431 which was 221 lower than the previous
year). The average time taken to process new Housing Benefit/Council Tax Benefit claims

and change events was 4.7 days to June 2020 (7.§ days to June 2019).
Page 2



NNDR

Due to the pandemic, recovery actions were suspended for quarter one with a recovery plan
implemented during July — starting with reminder letters being issued and negotiations
regarding payment undertaken according to individual circumstances.

Collection performance is subsequently below target - current year collection levels are at
25.4%, below target by 3.2% at 30 June equating to arrears of £0.66m (from £5.53m due to
30 June). Court costs are £1k below the anticipated level.

Arrears collected for 2018/19 are 3.5% compared to a target of 6.7%.
Council Tax

Due to the pandemic, recovery actions were suspended for quarter one until the full impact
on individuals was known - with a recovery plan implemented during July, starting with
reminder letters being issued and considering each individuals circumstances on a case by
case approach to further support the most vulnerable.

During this period we have still been engaging with our customers and depending on their
individual circumstances the following arrangements have been undertaken:

e Deferral of instalments;

e Flexible payment arrangements being made;

e Ensuring that they make an application for any qualifying benefits which includes
Local Council Tax Support.

Current year collection levels at 29.1% are lower than the target of 30.1% at June 2020
(with a target of 98% for the 2020/21 financial year) equating to arrears of £0.42m (from
£12.09m due to 30 June). Court cost income is below the anticipated level by £45k at £14k.
Arrears collection for 2019/20 of 12.8% is below the target of 25.6%.

Collection Fund — the estimated deficit (based on Tamworth’s 10.4% share) is £53k for the
year with a LCTS projected overspend of £18k (total £71k).

Housing

Summary information provided below explains numbers in receipt of Universal Credit:

Indicator Qtr 4 Qtr1l
2019/20 | 2020/21

Number of Council Tenants on Universal Credit 1,072 1,179

Number of Council Tenants on Universal Credit 663 777

in Rent Arrears

Percentage of Council Tenants on Universal 61.8% 65.9%

Credit in Rent Arrears

Number of Council Tenants on Universal Credit 409 402

not in Rent Arrears

Percentage of Council Tenants on Universal 38.2% 34.1%

Credit not in Rent Arrears

Page 29



Bad debt is forecast to increase in the future as more cases of Universal Credit come on
board.

Total rent arrears (excluding former tenants) at 30 June 2020 were £695k compared to
£507k at 31 March 2020 — an increase of £188k (compared to a £159k increase as at 30
June 2019).

Total arrears (including former tenant arrears, recharges, court costs and garages etc.) are
£2.02m at 30 June 2020, compared to £1.84m at 31 March 2020, an increase of £175k
(compared to a £186k increase between 31 March 2019 and 30 June 2019).

Total arrears (including former tenant arrears, recharges, court costs and garages etc.)
were £1.84m at 31 March 2020, compared to £1.84m at 31 March 2019, an increase of £6k
(compared to a £155k increase between 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019).

There were no evictions during quarter one 2020/21 (2 during quarter one of 2019/20), as
due to Covid-19, court action for eviction is on hold until at least 23 August 2020.

The following measures have also been put in place.
Voluntary Court Agreements between Landlord and Tenant

The courts recently gave Councils the power to revise court order agreements providing
both parties are in full agreement. For those tenants whose cases have been cancelled
(vacated) by the court due to the recent Covid-19 crisis or those tenants with existing court
agreements that are no longer affordable due to a change in circumstance, the court is
requesting that a voluntary agreement is successfully reached between landlord and tenant
and this is put in writing for both parties to sign and forward to the court within fourteen days
for the court to approval and/or place on file.

Hardship Fund

There has been a small pot of money within the income budget that has not been fully
utilised so we have successfully managed to get authorisation to access this to try and help
some of our tenants that have been affected by Covid-19. The purpose of the scheme is:
To assist tenants affected financially by the Covid-19 pandemic lockdown,

To help alleviate poverty and stress,

To reduce the temptation for tenants to use illegal money lenders,

To sustain tenancies.

There are certain criteria for those who can apply and conditions and exceptions but all this
information has been communicated across services in readiness for the receipt of
applications.

The Income Officers are responsible for managing the applications that are made. As the
budget is only small it has been agreed that we will be reliant on Income Officers to case
manage and identify tenants eligible to meet the criteria to try and assist as many as
possible.

Page 30



Paying Your Rent Leaflet

In addition to updating the above leaflet in accordance with Covid-19, the website has also
continued to be updated on a frequent basis. Both the leaflet and website include key
contact information for support and advice inclusive of protection for renters, information
and signposting to debt and arrears management, Covid-19 financial help and assistance,
emergency legislation to suspend new evictions, CAB support, and change in
circumstances etc.

Universal Credit

With regard to the roll out of universal credit, the current indicators show:

Indicator Qtr 4 Qtr 4 Qtr1
2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

live caseload figure 5,514 5,374 5,671

Number of Universal Credit claimants in Tamworth 2,682 4,594 8,132

Number of Council Tenants on Universal Credit 645 1,072 1,179

Number of Council Tenants on Universal Credit and in Rent 443 663 777

Arrears

Percentage of Council Tenants on Universal Credit and in Rent 68.7% 61.9% 65.9%

Arrears

Number of Council Tenants on Universal Credit and not in Rent 202 409 202

Arrears

Percentage of Council Tenants on Universal Credit and not in 31.3% 38.2% 34.1%

Rent Arrears

Number of Council Tax Payers on Universal Credit 745 1,254 1,655

Number qf Councn_Tax Payers on Universal Credit and in 261 388 N/A*

arrears with Council Tax payments

Percentage of Councn Tax Payers on Universal Credit and in 35.0% 30.9% N/A*

arrears with Council Tax payments

Number qf Councn_Tax Payers on Universal Credit and not in 484 866 N/A*

arrears with Council Tax payments

Percentage of Councn Tax Payers on Universal Credit and not in 65.0% 69.1% N/A*

arrears with Council Tax payments

Number of Universal Credit claimants nationally 1,736,431 2,933,218 5,275,248

Discretionary Housing Payments made - Year to date 140,303 135,782 45,860

AmOl_Jnt o_f Discretionary Housing Payments made to Universal 82,001 102,688 34,480

Credit claimants - Year to date

* As recovery action was suspended for quarter one, these figures are not available.

Page 31



3. Medium Term Financial Strategy 2019/20 to 2025 monitoring

Council, on 25th February 2020, approved a three year Medium Term Financial Strategy
(MTES) for the General Fund with a Council Tax increase of £5 for the year — in order to
continue to deliver those services essential to the local community.

With regard to the Housing Revenue Account (HRA), a five year MTFS was approved by
Council including significant investment in regeneration projects to meet future housing
needs and sustain the HRA in the longer term.

When the budget and MTFS were approved, future levels of funding for the Council were
uncertain pending the most significant changes in Local Government funding for a
generation. The reforms were planned to be in place by 2020/21 but were deferred until
2021/22. The Government has confirmed that the longer-term reforms for the local
government finance system (including the move to 75% Business Rates Retention and
Fairer Funding Review of Relative Needs and Resources) will be deferred again as a result
of the current situation, although no timescales have been released. In addition, the next
planned national Business Rates Revaluation, planned for 2021 will take effect from 2023.

On 21% July 2020, the Chancellor launched the 2020 Comprehensive Spending Review
(CSR). The Review, which will be published in the autumn, will set out the Government’s
spending plans for the parliament. It will set UK Government departments’ resource budgets
for the years 2021/22 to 2023/24 and capital budgets for the years 2021/22 until 2024/25,
and devolved administrations’ block grants for the same period.

Due to unprecedented uncertainty, the Chancellor did not fix a set spending envelope, but
confirmed that departmental spending (both capital and resource) will grow in real terms
across the CSR period and that the Government will deliver on the commitments made at
Budget to level up and invest in the priorities of the British people. Given the impact COVID-
19 has had on the economy, the Chancellor was clear there will need to be tough choices in
other areas of spending at the review. As part of their preparations for the CSR departments
have been asked to identify opportunities to reprioritise and deliver savings. Departments
will also be required to fulfil a series of conditions in their returns, including providing
evidence they are delivering the government’s priorities and focussing on delivery.

The Government has said it will keep an open dialogue with the local authorities on the best
approach to the next financial year, including how to treat accumulated business rates
growth of £2m p.a. (pending the planned business rates baseline reset) and the approach to
the 2021/22 local government finance settlement. It is also the Government’s intention to
look again at the New Homes Bonus for 2021/22 and explore the most effective way to
incentivise housing growth. They planned to consult widely on proposals prior to
implementation. In the longer-term, the Government remains committed to reform and want
to take time to work with local authorities to make sure that the approach is right.

As a nation we are likely to feel the consequences of the Covid-19 pandemic, and the
measures to contain and mitigate its effects, for years, and possibly decades, to come.

The extraordinary events we are living through follow a decade of austerity, triggered by the
financial crisis of 2008/09, which had already placed considerable strain on local authorities’
finances. Increased demand for many local public services, directly related to the outbreak
of the virus, has placed immediate pressure on authorities’ cash flows and expenditure
budgets. The longer-term consequences of recession and unemployment on demand for
services have yet to be experienced.

Page 32



At the same time, several important sources of local authority income including Council
Tax, Non domestic (business) rates, fees and charges, rents and investment returns have,
to a greater or lesser extent, been subject to reduction or suspension.

In light of the projected impact of Covid-19 on the Councils MTFS, an immediate
suspension of all non-essential spending was approved by Cabinet on 9th July and that
managers review their budgets and identify all non-essential spending for 2020/21 as part of
the quarter one projections at 30 June 2020 - and approval sought for the budget to be
revised to remove these.

No one can know what the effect of the Covid-19 crisis will have on the economy and
ultimately the impact for the Council’s finances. It will be many months before we have a
clearer idea on how the economy has responded to the recovery process — including any
lasting effects for individual businesses and their employees. Social distancing measures
will remain in place for the foreseeable future — impacting mainly on the Council’s ongoing
income receipts.

Government has provided additional funding of c£0.93m and the Local Government
Association (LGA) and the Society of District Council Treasurers (SDCT) will continue to
lobby and provide evidence to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government
(MHCLG) of the income and expenditure pressures that Council’'s face. MHCLG receive
monthly financial updates from Councils including information on Housing Revenue Account
pressures.

In addition, there is further uncertainty arising from the anticipated recovery and devolution
white paper that the Government has announced will be published later this year. It is
expected that the plan will be ambitious, shifting power from Whitehall with a placed-based
regional economic strategy empowering local councils to lead the economic recovery —
including reorganisation of Local Government to ‘remove the complexity of governance and
reduce costs to the taxpayer while making space for town and parish councils to be
genuinely empowered’.

While it is still early into the new financial year, an updated forecast has been prepared.
Over five years, a projected General Fund impact of £1.1million is forecast under the central
case scenario. Depending on the continuing effects of the pandemic, this could be much
worse. The MTFS previously identified a shortfall of £6.9m over 5 years — this is now
forecast at £8m and will require savings of cE2m p.a. commencing immediately.

Financial resilience is, and has been, the key requirement for local authorities at any time,
but in the current crisis it has assumed unprecedented importance. Perhaps the biggest
difficulty with the pandemic is that there is no certainty about time scales; it is impossible to
draw any conclusions about how long the effects will last.

During the crisis the Council has lost income which will significantly impact on the potential
sustainability of the organisation, as will be the case across many Local Government
organisations. Whilst the full extent of this cannot be known at present it will be necessary
for the Council to take an accelerated approach towards the development and
implementation of an effective sustainability strategy. This must be linked to an overall
vision for the organisation.

In light of the financial situation facing the Council, managers were tasked with identifying
low level non-essential budgets for removal from the budget — bringing down the savings
target of cE2m per annum and limiting the cuts that would otherwise be needed to balance
the MTFS in the future.

Page 33



The budget review has identified savings of £1.2m towards the projected lost income
anticipated from the impact of Covid-19 of £1.8m. In addition to the unringfenced grant of
£0.93m, it is also expected that £0.34m will be received from the projected fees and
charges income support grant (subject to receipt of detailed guidance).

The review included a robust challenge / re-justification process for all vacant posts with a
requirement to investigate alternative options including restructuring to fill vacancies /

looking at what we can stop doing — with £0.5m savings identified;

A summary of the finding from the budget review is shown below:

Analysis of Projected £000

Outturn

Assembly Rooms/Castle 108 | Net of savings due to decisions
around opening time / defer opening
of Assembly Rooms to 2021

Demand Led 71 | e.g. benefits, homelessness

Increased costs due to 26 | Council Tax, NNDR

COVID 19

Increased Income (30) | Planning, homelessness grants

Increased Income due to (1,273) | includes unringfenced grant of

COVID 19 £0.93m and projected fees and
charges income support grant of
£0.34m

Lost Income COVID 19 1,803

Savings (1,185) | includes savings from vacant posts
of £0.5m

Vacancy Allowance 602

Other 11

Total 134

The updated forecasts as at July 2020 are detailed below. For the General Fund, the impact
of the changes over 5 years range from an unfavourable impact of £1.1m under the central
case scenario to £7.7m under the worse- case.

As a result of the updated forecast, the forecast projections identify a shortfall in General
Fund balances of £1.1m over 3 years (compared with forecast balances in the February
2020 MTFS of £0.5m) — with a shortfall of £4.1m to 2023/24 increasing to £8m over 5 years
(the shortfall was previously forecast at £3.4m in 2023/24, £6.9m by 2024/25), including the
minimum approved level of £0.5m.

For the HRA, no major impact of the pandemic is forecast over five years and projections
range from an unfavourable impact of £0.5m under the worse-case scenario to a favourable
impact of £1.1m under the central case. At present, the current projection for the impact of
Covid-19 on rent income levels is manageable within existing balances.

The main upside scenario is that scientists succeed in developing a vaccine, or effective
treatment for Covid-19 before the end of this year. There are three downside risks.

First, a national second spike in infections. A lot will depend on the quality of the
government’s testing and tracing systems.

Page 34



Second, a wave of insolvencies, as weak companies fail and there is then a domino effect,
as well capitalised businesses suffer bad debts.

Third, the UK and EU could fail to reach a trade deal before the end of 2020, leading to a
hard Brexit.

Page 35



General Fund

General Fund
2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023/24

MTFS Projections 2019/20 -
2024/25

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Projected Balances per MTFS
Council February 2020 (6,644) | (5,570) | (3,139) (506) 2,850 6,423

Revised Stress Tested
Forecasts:

Best Case Revised Forecast (6,882) | (6,251) | (3,496) | (736)| 2,767 | 6,601
Balances - July 2020

Worse Case Revised Forecast | (6 882) | (4,361) | (291)| 3,751| 8,704 | 14,098
Balances - July 2020

Central Case Revised Forecast (6,882) | (5,673)| (2,787) 27 3585 7476
Balances - July 2020
Central Case (Improvement) / (238) (103) 352 532 735 1,053

deterioration - July 2021

Over five years, a projected General Fund impact of £1.1million is forecast under the central case
scenario. Depending on the continuing effects of the pandemic in future years, this could be much
worse.

As a result of the updated forecast, the forecast projections identify a shortfall in General Fund
balances of £1m over 3 years (compared with forecast balances in the February 2020 MTFS of
£0.5m) — with a shortfall of £4.1m to 2023/24 increasing to £8m over 5 years (the shortfall was
previously forecast at £3.4m in 2023/24, £6.9m by 2024/25), including the minimum approved level
of £0.5m.
Further savings of around £1.6m p.a. will be required over the next five years (based on
annual £5 increases in Council Tax). On an annualised basis this would equate to a year on
year ongoing saving of £0.5m over five years.
The Central case forecast has been adjusted for:

e Additional balances brought forward due to an additional underspend in 2019/20 of £0.2m;

e The projected outturn overspend of £134k in 2020/21 — much reduced following the
mitigating actions;

e Uncertainty over future income from Staffordshire County Council for verge maintenance of
£150k p.a.

¢ Reduced income from fees and charges of £1.8m in 2020/21 (including car parking and
court costs) £0.3m p.a. thereafter;

e Reduced commercial and industrial rent income of £0.2m p.a.

¢ Reduced income on investments due to low interest rates / deferral of property fund
investments - £0.2m p.a.

e Reduced council tax income in 2020/21 of £0.1m (impact on future budgets through council
tax deficit in Collection fund);

Page 36



¢ Reduced business rates income in 2020/21 of £0.2m (impact on future budgets through
business rates deficit in Collection fund);

¢ Revised lump sum contribution to the pension fund following the 2022 triennial review —
£0.1m (1% p.a.) year on year from 2023/24;

e Anincrease in cost due to the proposed pay award of 2.75% (compared to 2.5% budgeted) -
£50K p.a.

Offset by increased income / savings:

e Covid-19 grant funding of £0.93m from MHCLG plus an estimated £0.34m from the
projected fees and charges income support grant, subject to receipt of detailed guidance;

e Savings from the non-essential spend review of £1.2m (£0.2m p.a. thereafter);
e Reduced contingency budgets of £0.5m p.a.

Balances held within earmarked reserves for Transformation and Business rates retention will also
be available to support the development of the budget and MTFS.

Housing Revenue Account

Housing Revenue
Account

2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023/24
£'000 | £000 | £000 | £000 | £000 | £000

MTFS Projections 2019/20 -
2024/25

Projected Balances per
MTES Council February (4,764) | (3,424) | (3,013) | (1,586) | (1,447) | (1,131)
2020

Revised Stress Tested
Forecasts:

Best Case Revised Forecast
Balances - July 2020 (6,252) | (4,738) | (4,312) | (2,868) | (2,684) | (2,293)

Worse Case Revised

Forecast Balances - July (6,252) | (3,863) | (3,271) | (1,661) | (1,281) (664)
2020

Central Case Revised

Forecast Balances - July (6,252) | (4,771) | (4,329) | (2,869) | (2,668) | (2,260)
2020

Central Case (Improvement) /
deterioration - July 2021 (1,488) | (1,347) | (1,316) | (1,283) | (1,221) | (1,130)

As part of the approved MTFS in February 2020, a balanced five year forecast was
presented for the HRA.

As a result of the updated forecast, over the three year period to 2022/23, the forecast
projections identify balances of £2.9m (compared with forecast balances remaining of
£1.6m in the February MTFS) with balances of £2.7m over the four years to 2023/24
reducing to £2.3m in 2024/25 (balances were previously forecast at £1.4m in 2023/24,
£1.1m in 2024/25).

The forecast has been updated to include:Page 37



e Additional balances brought forward due to an additional underspend in 2019/20 of
£1.5m,;

e The projected outturn overspend of £143k in 2020/21;

e Increased rent bad debts from 2021/22 of £0.1m p.a. resulting from the economic
impact of Covid-19;

e Revised lump sum contribution to the pension fund following the 2022 triennial review
— £30k (1% p.a.) year on year from 2023/24;

e A marginal increase in cost due to the proposed pay award of 2.75% (compared to
2.5% budgeted);

e Offset by savings in unspent budgets of £79k p.a.

It is currently anticipated that the rent loss arising from delays in letting void properties,
increase in universal credit applications and temporary suspension of deductions from
Universal Credit for rent arrears can be managed within budget for 2020/21. No further rent
reductions have been assumed — with no changes to the current rent free weeks.

No impact of the delay in acquisitions / spend of one for one receipts has been included -

MHCLG have now confirmed an extension of time to 31 December 2020 to spend such
receipts.

Page 38



4. Financial Healthcheck

Executive Summary

This section to the report summarises the main issues identified at the end of June 2020.

General Fund

Revenue
YTD YTD Predicted
GENERAL FUND Budget | Position | Variance | Budget | Outturn | Variance
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Chief Executive 482 298 (184) | 1,467 1,414 (53)
AD Growth & Regeneration 287 477 190 | 1,144 1,634 490
ED Organisation 169 168 (1) 548 563 15
AD People 812 818 6 312 178 (134)
AD Operations & Leisure 1,030 1,301 271 3,395 3,435 40
ED Finance 31 32 1 - 7 7
AD Finance 1,199 | (2,178)| (3,377) 917 504 (413)
AD Assets (171) (206) (35)| (832) (661) 171
AD Neighbourhoods 271 132 (139) | 1,324 1,310 (14)
AD Partnerships 91 218 127 877 902 25
Total 4,201 1,060 | (3,141)| 9,152 9,286 134

The General Fund has a favourable variance against budget at Period 3 of £3.141m.

e The projected full year position identifies an unfavourable variance against budget of

£134k or 1.46%.

e This projection has highlighted several budget areas for concern (detailed at

Appendix A).

e A balance of £165k was held in the General Contingency Budget at the end of June
2020 which, as part of the non-essential spend review, is forecast will not be

required.

e The Council has ongoing monitoring processes in place for its spending and income
levels. In light of the projected impact of Covid-19 on the Council’s Medium Term
Financial Strategy, an immediate suspension of all non-essential spending was
approved by Cabinet on 9™ July and that Managers review their budgets and identify
all non-essential spending for 2020/21 as part of the quarter 1 projections at 30 June
2020 - and approval sought for the budget to be revised to remove these.

The budget review has identified savings of £1.2m towards the projected lost income
anticipated from the impact of Covid-19 of £1.8m.

Page 39




A summary of the finding from the budget review is shown below:

Analysis of Projected £
Outturn
Assembly Rooms/Castle 108,450 | Net of savings due to decisions around opening
time / defer opening of Assembly Rooms to
2021
Demand Led 71,100 | e.g. benefits, homelessness
Increased costs due to 26,100 | Council Tax, NNDR
Covid-19
Increased Income (29,580) | Planning, homelessness grants
Increased Income due to | (1,272,710) | includes unringfenced grant of £0.93m and
Covid-19 projected fees and charges income support
grant of £0.34m
Lost Income Covid-19 1,803,410
Savings (1,185,370) | includes savings from vacant posts of £0.5m
Vacancy Allowance 601,760
other 11,000
Total 134,160
Capital
Budg.et Reprofile
GENERAL FUND fs)en?rzgfllls;go YTDggggget YTst/:ﬁtdual Va;i)rz)ce Budget £000 oixrfudri:fc?oo Vagoznoce to(rz;c;z;gzz o;g&;"
(memo only) £000 only) £000
£000
Chief Executive 718 180 5 (174) 718 718 718
AD Growth & Regeneration 529 252 247 (6) 1,009 1,009 1,009
AD People 114 96 84 (12) 384 384 384
AD Operations & Leisure 921 242 435 193 967 967 967
AD Finance 12,131 3,033 (3,033) 12,131 12,131 12,131
AD Assets 311 259 660 401 1,036 1,036 1,036
AD Neighbourhoods 46! 26 49 23 103 103 103
AD Partnerships
GF Contingency 306 76 (76) 306 306 306

e Capital expenditure incurred was £1.481m compared to a profiled budget of

£4.164m.

e |tis predicted that £16.655m will be spent by the year-end compared to a full year
budget of £16.655m (this includes re-profiled schemes from 2019/20 of £15.077m).

e A summary of Capital expenditure is shown at Appendix B.

Treasury Management

e At the end of June 2020 the Authority had £58.534m invested in the money markets.
The average rate of return on these investments is 0.92% though this may change if
market conditions ease.

e Borrowing by the Authority stood at £63.060m at the end of June 2020, all being long
term loans from the Treasury Public Works Loans Board. The average rate payable
on these borrowings equates to 4.05%.

Page 40




¢ A more detailed summary of the Treasury Management situation, detailing our
current Lending and Borrowings can be found at Appendix C.

Balances

Balances on General Fund are projected to be in the region of £5.674m at the year-end
from normal revenue operations compared to £5.570m projected within the 2020/21
budget report— additional balances of £104k.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

Revenue
YTD YTD Predicted
HOU?QSORUEI\\I/_FNUE Budget | Position | Variance | Budget | Outturn | Variance
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
HRA Summary (4,653) | (4,628) 25| (2,827) (2,827) -
ED Communities 27 29 2 - 8 8
AD Operations & Leisure 35 27 (8) 178 168 (10)
AD People 42 27 (15) 167 161 (6)
AD Assets 209 196 (13) 389 407 18
AD Neighbourhoods 529 606 77| 3,431 3,564 133
Housing Repairs - (382) (382) - - -
Total (3,811) | (4,125) (314) | 1,338 1,481 143

e The HRA has a favourable variance against budget at Period 3 of £314k.

e The projected full year position identifies an unfavourable variance against budget of
£143k. Individual significant budget areas reflecting the variance are detailed at

Appendix A.

e A summary of the finding from the budget review is shown below:

Analysis of Projected

Outturn £
Projected Overspend 40,730
includes savings from vacant
Savings (79,390) | posts of £19,500
Vacancy Allowance 181,930
Grand Total 143,270
Capital

Budget
Reprofiled
from 2019/20
(memo only)
£000

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

YTD Budget
£000

YTD Actual

Spend
£000

Variance
£000

Budget £000

Predicted
Outturn £000

Variance
£000

Reprofile
to 2020/21
(memo
only) £000

Outturn
£000

AD Assets 5,904

4,037

3,190

(848)

16,150

16,150

16,150

HRA Contingency 100

25

(25)

100

100

100

¢ Housing Capital expenditure of £3.190m has been incurred as at the end of Period 3
compared to a profiled budget of £4.062m.

Page 41




e |tis predicted that £16.250m will be spent by the year-end compared to the full year
budget of £16.250m (including £6.004m re-profiled from 2019/20);

e A summary of Capital expenditure is shown at Appendix B.
Balances

Balances on the Housing Revenue Account are projected to be in the region of £4.771m at
the year-end compared to £3.424m projected within the 2019/20 budget report — additional
balances of £1.347m

Page 42



Appendix 1

Corporate Plan Project Updates

Corporate Capital Strategy

Project due date

3. On track and in control

2. Not on track but in control

1. Not on track

Page 43



Cleaning Review

Project due date

3. On track and in control

2. Not on track but in control

1. Not on track

Page 44



Leisure Services Review

Project due date

3. On track and in control

2. Not on track but in control

1. Not on track

Page 45



Risk Management Strategy

Project due date

3. On track and in control

2. Not on track but in control

1. Not on track

Page 46



Implement Customer Portal

Project due date

3. On track and in control

2. Not on track but in control

1. Not on track

Page 47



ICT Strategy

Project due date TBA
3. On track and in control
2. Not on track but in control v

1. Not on track

Month & Year of update

June 2020

(Traffic light - red, amber, green based on progress to date)

Workstream
Workstreams Due date Lead RAG status
Financial waiver approved for SIP platform upgrade initial estimated savings £1k per month
Work to commence on move to new platform next month. Orders for the new lines into the Depot and
Marmion have been placed and a project manager appointed by our supplier to oversee
implementation. Next steps are commissioning of the new connectivity and SIP trunks followed by
testing and porting of our numbers onto the new platform.
There has been a delay to the first phase of this project due to BT lead times as a result of COVID. ggggst GY/NH
They have now engaged with us to arrange installation of the lines.
Work now progressing with BT to install the new fibre connections.
New Fibre connections now installed into Marmion and Depot. Next step is SIP provisioning and then
porting of numbers
Implementation of Astute as policy management tool / decommissioning of Net Consent. Janet is
continuing to work on Astute preparation for policy dissemination The next steps are to complete this
work, agree a process for policy management followed by implementation. NetConsent will then be
decommissioned. Implementation is planned for April. Aug 2020 |GY
Timescales for implementation pushed back to August due to absences and other priorities relating to
current situation
Deliver short term priorities —
EPOS Replacement — Assembly Rooms and TIC are now implemented. Implementation at the Castle is
currently being planned for end Feb/Early March.
Timescales changed for Castle implementation, this is currently being discussed with the Castle and
Gardiff
All information regarding proposed implementation of Spektrix and Gardiff under consideration,
awaiting response and timescale.
Northgate M3 upgrade to Assure — this was put on hold due to resource issues in both Planning and
Environmental Health. AM to advise when resource in place and project can be looked at again.
Contract renegotiation — this is an ongoing activity now. We are working on reviewing all of our
contracts to ensure they are recorded correctly, documentation up to date and triggers for review in
place. March Gy
2021
Agreed that we will now proceed with Assure upgrade for Planning followed by EH with learning from
the Planning implementation as EH more complex and requires more resource.
Training on Assure Planning has now commenced ready to start implementation
Proposal for a 3-year fixed term contract across all Northgate systems received — to be discussed with
procurement. Results in savings, avoiding RPI increases for the contract duration.
Assure implementation ongoing for Planning — conversion of documents underway to new Assure
document production.
After negotiations with Northgate, updated proposal received with 2 free of charge inclusive
consultancy days. Awaiting costs of their upgrade service to remove this from ICT responsibility.
Corporate Business Objects Review and explore Enterprise licencing — not started. This will be looked
at as part of the contract work above.

Page 48



Page 49



Organisational Development Strategy

Project due date

3. On track and in control

2. Not on track but in control

1. Not on track

Page 50



Completion of new homes at Tinkers Green & Kerria

Project due date

3. On track and in control

2. Not on track but in control

1. Not on track

Page 51



Welfare Reform

Project due date

3. On track and in control

2. Not on track but in control

1. Not on track

Page 52



Housing Strategy

Project due date

3. On track and in control

2. Not on track but in control

1. Not on track

Page 53



Allocations Policy

Project due date

3. On track and in control

2. Not on track but in control

1. Not on track

Page 54



Leisure Strategy

Project due date

3. On track and in control

2. Not on track but in control

1. Not on track

Page 55



Opening of the refurbished Assembly Rooms

Project due date

3. On track and in control

2. Not on track but in control

1. Not on track

Page 56



Town Centre Programme

Project due date

3. On track and in control

2. Not on track but in control

1. Not on track

Page 57



Page 58



Appendix 2

Corporate Risk Register 2020/21

Title Description
Finance To ensure that the Council is financially sustainable as an organisation
Risk Date Reviewed Current Risk Current Risk Current Risk | Current Risk
Severity Likelihood Rating Status
Funding gaps 10-Jul-2020 3 3 9 A
Business Rates Retention 10-Jul-2020 3 3 9 A
New Homes Bonus 10-Jul-2020 3 2 6 A
g.? Welfare and Benefit Reform 01-Jul-2020 4 4 16 .
(Q Failure to manage budgets 10-Jul-2020 3 2 6 A
o) ‘
‘@e Description
Modernisation & Commercialisation Agenda Develop and implement continuous improvement and develop employees to perform the right work
Risk Date Reviewed Current Risk Current Risk Current Risk | Current Risk
Severity Likelihood Rating Status
Contract Management & Procurement 10-Jul-2020 2 2 4 @

Management of Assets 02-Jul-2020 2 3 6

New Revenue Streams 10-Jul-2020 3 3 9

Continuous Improvement 13-Jul-2020 2 2 4

Partnerships fail 01-Jul-2020 3 2 6

&
&
Workforce Planning Challenges 15-Jun-2020 3 2 6 A
&



Title Description

Governance Ensure that processes, policies and procedures are in place and the authority is held to account

Risk Date Reviewed Current Risk Current Risk
Severity Likelihood

Democratic Process 01-Jul-2020 3 2
Legislation 13-Jul-2020 3 2
Policies & Procedures 13-Jul-2020 3 2
Ethics 13-Jul-2020 2 2

Title Description

Community Focus To ensure the safety, health and wellbeing of the citizens of the borough

Q-? Risk Date Reviewed Current Risk

«Q Severity

g Community Cohesion & Engagement 01-Jul-2020 3

= Safeguarding Children & Adults (including Modern Slavery) 01-Jul-2020 2
Emergency Planning 01-Jul-2020 3

Title Description

Economic Growth & Sustainability To ensure that the economic growth and sustainability of the borough is maintained

Risk Date Reviewed Current Risk
Severity

Lack of economic investment in people and Places 06-Jul-2020 3

Housing Needs 01-Jul-2020 4

Economic Changes 06-Jul-2020 3

Current Risk
Likelihood

3

3

Current Risk
Likelihood

3

3

Current Risk
Rating

6

6

Current Risk
Rating

9

6

Current Risk
Rating

9

12

Current Risk
Status

(U

Current Risk
Status

Y
A

Current Risk
Status

Y
»



Title

Information Safeguarding

Risk

Description

To ensure that our data is protected

Data Protection and information Safeguarding

Cyber Security

Business Continuity

Title
Brexit

Risk

Fina

ncial

o
QD
C% The Impact of Brexit upon the Council
(®))
H

Description

The Impact of Brexit upon the Council

Risk Status
High Risk
% |Medium Risk
Ia Low Risk

Date Reviewed

23-Jun-2020

23-Jun-2020

02-Jul-2020

Date Reviewed

13-Jul-2020

13-Jul-2020

Current Risk
Severity

4

4

Current Risk
Severity

4

4

Current Risk
Likelihood

2

2

Current Risk
Likelihood

4

4

Current Risk
Rating

8

8

Current Risk
Rating

16

16

Current Risk
Status

Current Risk
Status



General Fund — Main Variances

Appendix A

Year To Year To Al YEEw Full Year
Date Date Year To Date Full Year Position Position
Service Area Cost Centre Account Code Position " Position Position Predicted . Comment
Position : Predicted
Sub Variance Budget Qutturn
Budget . Outturn
Total Variance
Salaries 55,319 64,200 8881) | 256750 | (93,710)| 163,040 | S2VIngs dueto
mothballing
Wages 3,780 15,000 (11,220) 60,000 |  (45,000) 15,000 | Savings on casuals
due to closure
Performers Fees - 16,500 (16,500) 66,000 (66,000) -
gg}’easteE)';"re Ticket ; 12,510 (12,510) 50,000 | (50,000) -
A% Assembly Rooms Split Prof?[ Event
Q P 250 54,930 (54,680) 219,750 | (219,500) 250
Q Ticket Sale .
[9) - Due to mothballing
o Ticket Sales - (33,000) 33,000 (132,000) 132,000 -
N Fovate Hire Ticket .| (2510 12,510 |  (50,000) | 50,000 i
i‘(’;'grsg’f't Event -l (73,260) 73,260 | (293,000) | 293,000 i
AD Operations Savin
. : gs due to
& Leisure Salaries 27,012 38,190 (11,178) 152,720 (93,630) 59,090 mothballing
Assembly Rooms | Bar Consumables - 13,260 (13,260) 53,010 | (53,010) _ | Savings due to
Bar mothballing
Bar Sales (83) (14,160) 14,077 (56,650) 56,650 -
; Due to closure.
Catering Sales - (44,190) 44,190 (176,710) 176,710 -
Not expecting income
Outdoor Events & | e 285 (9,360) 9,645 (37,430) 37,430 - | target due to reduced
Arts Projects
number of events
Vacant post plus
apprentices due to
. Salaries 296,093 325,890 (29,797) | 1,303,580 (63,000) | 1,240,580 | finish in Sept. Due to fill
Public Spaces one vacancy on 12
months temp contract.
Vacancy Allowance - (20,760) 20,760 (83,040) 83,040 - | Vacancy allowance




Income

Year To Full Year
Date YeDzrt(;I'o Year To Date Full Year Position ';lgéi:%ir
Service Area Cost Centre Account Code Position Positi Position Position Predicted - Comment
osition . Predicted
Sub B Variance Budget Outturn
udget . Outturn
Total Variance
taken out of budget
No outturn variance to
Vehicle Hire 64,271 96,850 (32,579) 96,850 - 96,850 | budget predicted at this
stage
Contract Pavments No outturn variance to
Public Spaces : y 98,020 27,030 70,990 108,110 = 108,110 | budget predicted at this
. (Basic)
AD Operations stage
& Leisure . . : Spend within budget
Tbc Highways Mainten Highway X
Maintenance Related Assets 89,432 29,730 59,702 118,910 - 118,910 | large orders on system
yet to be completed
Tourist Information | g5 jes 15,375 31,410 (16,035) | 125580 | (62,000) 63,580 | O recruitment to
Service vacant posts.
AD People . Salaries 111,351 | 143,490 (32,139) | 573,930 | (73,000)| 500,930 | Wil not be recruiting to
Customer Services vacant posts
U Vacancy Allowance - (7,830) 7,830 (31,260) 31,260 - | Vacancy allowance
D Commercial Provision For Bad Anticipated impact of
L% Property Debts 5,522 5,580 (58) 5,580 75,000 80,580 | COVID 19 on rental
@D Assets Management income
%) Provision For Bad Anticipated impact of
Industrial Properties Debts 1,384 14,820 (13,436) 14,820 80,000 94,820 | COVID 19 on rental
income
Provision For Bad Report still to be done
Debts 4,012 40,200 (36,188) 40,200 - 40,200 | around write off of
historic B&B debt
Historic budget based
on high level of spend
Bed And Breakfast 32,024 53,310 (21,286) | 213,280 | (113,000)| 100,280 | " Pastyears, improved
AD Cost practices have resulted
: Homelessness ; R,
Neighbourhoods in a significantly
reduced spend on B&B
Government (51,740) | (51740)| (26,000) | (25.740) | (51,740) | HOomeless Reduction
Grants ' ’ ' ' ' Act grant funding
Historic budget based
Bed & Breakfast (7.724) | (53,330 45,606 | (213.270) | 113,000 | (100,270) | on high level of spend

in past years, improved




Service Area

Cost Centre

Account Code

Year To
Date
Position
Sub
Total

Year To
Date
Position
Budget

Year To Date
Position
Variance

Full Year
Position
Budget

Full Year
Position
Predicted
Outturn
Variance

Full Year
Position
Predicted
Outturn

Comment

practices have resulted
in a significantly
reduced spend on B &
B

ighbourhoods

79 abegp

Homelessness
Strategy

Salaries

46,617

56,790

(10,173)

227,100

(35,500)

191,600

Budget setting
duplication

Government
Grants

(145,855)

(100,000)

(45,855)

(100,000)

(100,000)

Remaining grant
money to be utilised
once new spending
priorities have been
agreed (report to
cabinet November
2020)

Community
Wardens

Salaries

34,103

57,540

(23,437)

230,160

(84,000)

146,160

Budget includes 2
vacant posts for duties
now covered by Stoke
on Trent. 2 further
vacancies due to
retirement which
cannot be recruited to
at present

Payments For
Temporary Staff

22,537

22,537

101,000

101,000

Estimated costs for
Stoke on Trent for CPE
work

AD Partnerships

DDCPP Business
Support

Salaries

45,299

58,443

(13,143)

233,770

(36,000)

197,770

Saving due to
retirement

Voluntary Sector

Grants To
Community Service
Organisations

30,375

13,070

17,305

112,280

(30,000)

82,280

Saving against full year
budget, potentially
ongoing dependent on
review.

Civil Parking
Enforcement

Standard Charges

14,717

(27,510)

42,227

(110,000)

42,230

(67,770)

Enforcement
suspended due to
Covid until July.

Neighbourhood
Services

Street Traders
Licence Income

(8,880)

8,880

(35,570)

30,000

(5,570)

Not expecting to
achieve target.

Chief Executive

Electoral Process

Election Staff

55,680

(55,680)

55,680

(55,680)

Elections cancelled due
to Covid 19, no further




Year To

Full Year

Date YeDzrt(;I'o Year To Date Full Year Position ';lgéi:%ir
Service Area Cost Centre Account Code Position Positi Position Position Predicted - Comment
osition . Predicted
Sub B Variance Budget Outturn
udget . Outturn
Total Variance
spend anticipated
unless need to hold a
by-election
Chief Executive | Y0t Waste Refuse Joint 254488 | 375500 | (121,012) | 1,501,980 - | 1,501,980 | NO outturn variance
Arrangement Arrangements reported at this stage
Reduced income -
AD Operations | o cide car Parks | oot Stay Car (5,869) | (208,000) 202,131 | (800,000) | 400,000 | (400,000) | Mmpactof Covid 19 &
& Leisure Parking free parking until June
15th
Salaries 57,499 57,960 (461) 231,880 (83,400) 148,480 | Impact of Covid 19
Redundancy . . . | 27,500 27,500 | mPaCt Of Covid 19 on
Castle & Museum USINess
Income down due to
Admission Fees - (45,000) 45,000 (136,610) 100,000 (36,610) | closure because of
U covidl9
Q Schools .
Q Castle Schools Programme - (2,932) | (10,230) 7299 | (40,900) | 40,900 . | Not expecting schools
@ Education | for entire year
ncome
8 Vacant posts -
business case going
AD Growth & forward to f_itllhotne "
Regeneration Salaries 71,657 91,830 (20,173) | 368,210 | (50,000) | 318,210 | Y2cancy, win frac
trace this could be an
essential post. Extra
underspend to cover
Environmental temp staff costs
Health .
Pavments For To use salaries
Y 47,245 - 47,245 12,000 35,000 47,000 | underspend to fund
Temporary Staff !
extension of temp staff
Government Income from SCC to
Grants - - - - (50,000) (50,000) | support track & trace re

Covid 19




Year To Full Year
Date YeDzrt(;I'o Year To Date Full Year Position ';lglsi;%ir
Service Area Cost Centre Account Code Position Position Position Position Predicted Predicted Comment
Sub Bud Variance Budget Qutturn
Total udget Variance Outturn
- . . Budget expected to be
gSV'dO}thz;fr']”ess Efj'g(izs Support . 37,749 (37,749) 37,749 - 37,749 | spent over the course
PP ) of the project
AD Finance Benefits Rent Allowances 1,363,231 | 1,429,000 (65,769) | 6,145,280 | (298,910) | 5,846,370 3gisrf]d@gnp'§wp est
ggga';'erg Rent 4,063 10,790 (6,727) 43,160 31,030 74,190
ggz[‘ggg?easm 1,997,828 | 2,062,840 (65,012) | 7,616,630 | (394,620) | 7,222,010
Council Tenant Based on DWP est
Grant (1,937,475) | (2,034,890) 97,415 | (7,513,410) | 359,660 | (7,153,750) | (oo o'ns
Fvate Tenant (1,331,695) | (1,395,000) 63,305 | (5,998,560) | 241,480 | (5,757,080)
U . Non-Hra Rent
L;I!; Benefits [R)_ebat? GrantH (18,371) (9,880) (8,491) (39,390) (34,100) (73,490) I
iscretionary Hsg ov
o Paymt Grant (60,811) (60,810) 1) (130,000) (52,430) (182,430) Contribution
o S::S;E’:Yrrgﬁgat (31,196) |  (60,840) 20,644 | (243,410) | 118,630 | (124,780)
Overpayment =
AD Finance gogncil Tenant (31,847) (42,090) 10,243 (168,310) 40,920 (127,390) | Based on e-Fins @ P3
Rtecc\,'féf; yment 24,365 : 24,365 | 97460 97,460
Benefits Salaries 102,874 117,300 (14,426) 469,220 | (47,000) 422,220 ,\SAZ‘;'Bgsrte_porﬁ;gﬁ; Ops
Administration Vacancy Allowance - (8,220) 8,220 (32,850) 32,850 - | Vacancy allowance
General Predicted underspend,
Contingenc - - - 165,000 | (165,000) - | to mitigate impact of
gency Covid 19
glr:re]?éincy - - - 105,000 | (105,000) - | To be putin reserve
Corporate Finance
Climate Emergency -
Cont To Reserves . . ~| 1,150,000 | 105,000 | 1,255,000 | Potental transfer to

reserve if no spend in
year




Year To Full Year
Date YeDzrt(;I'o Year To Date Full Year Position ';lgéi:%ir
Service Area Cost Centre Account Code Position Positi Position Position Predicted - Comment
osition . Predicted
Sub B Variance Budget Qutturn
udget . Outturn
Total Variance
No outturn variance
Nndr Lev reported at this stage -
y 102,050 0 102,050 | 1,090,020 0| 1,090,020 | uncertainty over
Payments .
business rates as
economy recovers
Government S31 grant for additional
(3,122,535) (273,900) | (2,848,635) | (1,095,550) - | (1,095,550) | Covid19 retail relief in
Grants
2020/21
Corporate Finance Unc_ertamty over
business rates
Misc Contributions - - - (549,980) 549,980 - | collection levels for
Staffordshire pool - to
be reviewed at Qtr 2
Treasur Property Eund Delayed investment in
y roperty (9,068) (75,000) 65,932 (300,000) 205,000 (95,000) | property funds due to
U Management Dividends Covid19
%D Finance Budget established
D Othe_r Supplies And 2047 41,180 (39,133) 41,180 i 41,180 from Gov't grant and _
o Services expected to be spent in
~ full
Covid-19 Government . .
Grants (755,386) (5,000) (750,386) (5,000) | (932,710) (937,710) | Covid19 grant income
Government Potential Covid 19
- - - - | (340,000) (340,000) | income support grant
Grants
scheme
Court action
Council Tax Court Costs (13,562) (68,850) 55,288 (275,440) 175,440 (100,000) | suspended during

pandemic




Housing Revenue Account — Main Variances

Service Area

Cost Centre

Account Code

Year To
Date
Position
Sub
Total

Year To
Date
Position
Budget

Year To Date
Position
Variance

Full Year
Position
Budget

Full Year
Position
Predicted
Outturn
Variance

Full Year
Position
Predicted
Outturn

Comment

Ad
Neighbourhoods

Income
Management

Council Tax
Payments

46,767

1,140

45,627

4,530

4,530

Full years council tax
paid for void properties
in error, this will need to
be refunded once the
properties have been
let

Estate Management

Maintenance Of
CCTV

40,730

40,730

40,730

40,730

Committee decision to
increase HRA
contribution to CCTV
not built in to HRA
budget

g9|abed

Housing
Repairs

Repairs Contract

Covid 19 Costs

202,544

202,544

These costs relate to
payments made under
the Government
guidance note
PPNO02/20 in response
to COVID19

Responsive
Repairs

133,514

457,500

(323,986)

1,830,000

1,830,000

The initial months of
the repairs contract
have been impacted by
the COVID 19 outbreak
with access to property
being restricted. It is




Year To Full Year
Date YeDzrt(;I'o Year To Date Full Year Position 'Iilj)”sthiiarlwr
Service Area Cost Centre Account Code Position o Position Position Predicted . Comment
Position . Predicted
Sub B Variance Budget QOutturn
udget . Outturn
Total Variance
anticipated that
workloads will increase
steadily but may not
Voids 230,831 | 334,208 | (103,376) | 1,336,830 -| 1,336,830 | return to full levels in
the current year.
Rent income is
currently under
recovered due to a
higher number of voids
and a halt to the work
on the Tinkers Green
Hra Summary H R A Summary Rents (4,861,772) | (4,907,097) 45,325 | (18,118,510) - | (18,118,510) | and Kerria

T
&b
Q
@D
o
©

developments during
lockdown. Lettings
have now resumed and
it is anticipated that rent
income levels should
even out going forward




Capital Programme Monitoring

Appendix B

AD_growth
U

Budget
Reprofiled YTD . Reprofile
Service Area from BIgDet Actual Variance | Budget Péic:;ﬁtrid Variance | to 2021/22 | Outturn Comments
2019/20 £oogo Spend £000 £000 £000 £000 (memo £000
(memo £000 only) £000
only) £000
Chief Executive
Gungate Development 718 180 5 (174) 718 718 - - 718 | -

QD
C%e Mercian Trail

Delay due to Castle
closure, contractors are

280 70 232 162 280 280 - - 280 ;
now on site, due for
~ completion this year
O Funds for Phase 3
(Corporation St), linked to
Gateways 244 108 5 (104) 434 434 - - 434 | bid for Government funds
under accelerated
projects, with SCC.
Cultural Quarter - Carnegie 6 1 5 3 6 6 ) ) 6 -
Centre
Cultural Quarter - Public Outstanding commitment
- - 4 4 - - - - - .
Realm to be reviewed
Project delayed due to
Repairs to Castle Elevation - 63 1 (61) 250 250 - - 250 Covid 19, but technical
work has now
commenced
Castle Lighting - 10 - (20) 40 40 - - 40 Tender documentation

currentli beini drafted.




Budget

Database

AD Operations & Leisure

Reprofiled YTD YTD Predicted Reprofile
Service Area from Budget Actual Variance | Budget outturn Variance | to 2021/22 | Outturn Comments
2019/20 EOgO Spend £000 £000 £000 £000 (memo £000
(memo £000 only) £000
only) £000
AD People -
To be spent in line with
i i capital appraisal, plus
Replacement It Technology 45 26 45 18 105 105 105 replacement laptops &
technology
EDRMS (Electronic Further development of
Document Records 30 8 - (8) 30 30 - - 30 | processes for the
Management System) customer portal
New Time Recording System 15 4 - 4) 15 15 - ; 15 %gf"ted to be spent this
Self Service Customer Portal 24 6 24 17 24 24 . . 24 | Project expected to be
completed shortly
Membper Device Refresh - 5 16 11 20 20 - - 20 | Expected to be fully spent
9‘5’ Current contract expires
Endpoint & Web E-Mail Filter - 10 - (20) 40 40 - - 40 | October, looking at
D options
Potential underspend as
Asgal Management - 38 - (38) 150 150 . . 150 | contribution from HRA

capital planned

Wigginton Park Section

Plans to deliver scheme in

Section 106 10 2 - (2) 10 10 - - 10 | line with Wigginton Park
Management Plan.
Ongoing works to
groadmeadow Nature 17 4 - (4) 17 17 - - 17 | complete management
eserve
plan and HLS agreement.
Spend in line with work
Public Open Space Section 10 > i @) 10 10 i i 10 plan. Work required is
106 seasonal / weather
dependant.
Works to be delivered in
Street Lighting 33 20 2 (18) 79 79 - - 79 | line with 30 year project

plan




Budget

Feasability

AD Finance

Reprofiled YTD YTD Predicted Reprofile
Service Area from Budget Actual Variance | Budget outturn Variance | to 2021/22 | Outturn Comments
2019/20 £000 Spend £000 £000 £000 £000 (memo £000
(memo £000 only) £000
only) £000
Works ongoing to deliver
Local Nature Reserves 23 6 - (6) 23 23 - - 23 | items from management
plan for various LNRs.
Variation to design spec
to be included with
. Amington Community
community Woodland 199 50 10 (40) 199 199 : : 199 | Woodland, delay in
ycleway delivery phase due to new
work timeline from
developer.
Consultation and design
Amington Community complete however, delay
@g 337 84 20 (64) 337 337 - - 337 | in delivery phase due to
Waqodland Do
new work timeline from
% developer.
~ Agreement with Sport
3GMports Facility 193 48 524 476 193 193 - - 193 | England completion
expected early 2020/21.
Update report to be
Assembly Rooms considered by Cabinet as
Development : ) (120) (520 i i i i " | agreed by the Portfolio
Holder
Linked with review of
Indoor and Outdoor Sports 100 25 - (25) 100 100 - - 100 | Gungate site and strategy

for the whole borough.

Property Funds

8,131

2,033

(2,033)

8,131

8,131

8,131

Planned investment in
Property Funds delayed
by Covid-19 pandemic -
future investment subject
to review




Budget
Reprofiled YTD . Reprofile
Service Area from BIgDet Actual Variance | Budget Péic:;ﬁtrid Variance | to 2021/22 | Outturn Comments
2019/20 £Oogo Spend £000 £000 £000 £000 (memo £000
(memo £000 only) £000
only) £000
Scheme review planned
Solway Tamworth LTD LATC 4,000 1,000 - (2,000) 4,000 4,000 - - 4,000 | following Covid-19
iandemic
AD Assets
Disabled Facilities Grant 190 210 660 450 840 840 - - 840 -
No decisions yet re this
Agile Working Phase 2 114 29 - (29) 114 114 - - 114 | Scheme - dependent on
future plans for Marmion
House/Covid 19 recovery
Energy EFF Upgrade
Commercial and Industrial - 19 1 (18) 75 75 - - 75 ﬁgitzoc spend to upgrade
Propgrties
CaStle Grounds Toilet o
R&Brbishment 7 2 - (2) 7 7 - - 7 | Final invoice expected
ADWNeighbourhoods
Homelessness Reduction Act 30 8 - (8) 30 30 - - 30 -
CCTV Infrastructure 16 18 49 31 73 73 - - 73 -
GF Contingency
. No requirement identified
Gf Contingency 35 9 - (9) 35 35 - - 35 as at 30 June 2020
No requirement identified
Cont-Return On Investment 20 5 - (5) 20 20 - - 20 as at 30 June 2020
Subject to VFM
. assessment - budget for
GF Contingency Plant and 100 25 : (25) 100 100 - . 100 | potential plant and
Equipment :
equipment purchases
over leasing




Budget

Reprofiled YTD YTD Predicted Reprofile
Service Area from Budget Actual Variance | Budget outturn Variance | to 2021/22 | Outturn Comments
2019/20 £000 Spend £000 £000 £000 £000 (memo £000
(memo £000 only) £000
only) £000
The impact of Covid-19
means we now heed to
Refurbishment of Marmion review how our most
House Reception 100 25 (25) 100 100 - - 100 | vulnerable residents are
(Contingency) accessing services —
which will inform the need
for the budget.
Held for potential future
GDPR Compliance ICT requirements
(Contingency) £l 8 ) 3l sl ) ) <5 following Covid-19
pandemic
MOb"? Phone Contract 20 5 (5) 20 20 - - 20 | Subject to contract review
(Camgingency)

~
AN




HOUSING REVENUE

ACCOUNT
Budget
Reprofiled YTD . Reprofile
Service Area from BIgDet Actual Variance | Budget P(r)i(:;ﬁtrid Variance | to 2021/22 | Outturn Comments
2019/20 EO()gO Spend £000 £000 £000 £000 (memo £000
(memo £000 only) £000
only) £000
AD Assets
Budget for ad hoc repairs
Structural Works - 75 23 (52) 300 300 - - 300 | as identified during the
year
Bathroom Renewals - 142 6 (136) 568 568 - - 568
Gas Central Heating 147 208 18 (190) 833 833 : : 833
Upgrades and Renewals
0
Q .
Kitchen Renewals - 259 (6) (266) | 1,038 1,038 . . 1,038 | Predicted spend and
[} possible re-profiling to be
] reviewed over the coming
Majgt Roofing Overhaul and 95 259 @) (254) 1,006 1,006 ) ) 1,006 months during Covid 19
Renewals recovery phase
Window and Door Renewals - 162 2 (161) 649 649 - - 649
Neighbourhood : 187 88 (100) 749 749 : : 749
Regeneration
Anticipate some re-
. - profiling as unlikely to
Disabled Facilities 112 81 (24) (105) 325 325 - - 325 | gain access to all

Adaptations

properties due to Covid
19




Budget

Reprofiled YTD YTD Predicted Reprofile
Service Area from Budaet Actual Variance | Budget outturn Variance | to 2021/22 Outturn Comments
2019/20 £0(?0 Spend £000 £000 £000 £000 (memo £000
(memo £000 only) £000
only) £000

Predicted spend and
possible re-profiling to be

Rewire - 91 7 (84) 362 362 - - 362 | reviewed over the coming
months during Covid 19
recovery phase

CO2 / Smoke Detectors - 16 4 (12) 64 64 - - 64

Insulation - 4 - (4) 18 18 - - 18

Renew High Rise Lifts 243 61 @) (63) 243 243 i i 243 ggfggore'pmf"ed from

Fire Upgrades To Flats 2012 150 38 - (38) 150 150 - - 150 ngggore'pmf"ed from

Shejtered Schemes - 25 - (25) 100 100 - - 100

Engpgy Efficiency _ ) ] ]

Inf62ovements 18 (18) 70 70 70

Instéll Fire Doors High Rise - 365 - (365) 1,460 1,460 - - 1,460

N
o Budget re-profiled from

High Rise Balconies 20 5 22 17 20 20 - - 20 2019/20

Works to High Rise Flats 605 151 392 241 605 605 . . 605 Sg‘ljg/eztore'pmf"ed from

Retention of Garage Sites 179 220 26 (194) 879 879 ; - g7g | Consultants now
appointed

Capital Salaries - 50 - (50) 200 200 - - 200 -

Software Fire Safety Surveys - 23 - (23) 90 90 - - 90 -

HRA Street Lighting - 17 - (17) 69 69 - - 69 -

Tinkers Green 1,796 449 1,195 746 | 1,796 1,796 - - 1,796 | Planned completion in
December

Kerria Estate Project 1,068 267 20 247y | 1,068 1,068 - - 1,068 | Planned completion in
December

Regeneration General 81 20 2 (18) 81 81 - - 81 -




Budget

Reprofiled YTD YTD Predicted Reprofile
Service Area from Budget Actual Variance | Budget outturn Variance | to 2021/22 | Outturn Comments
2019/20 £Oogo Spend £000 £000 £000 £000 (memo £000
(memo £000 only) £000
only) £000
Other Acquisitions 1,407 352 971 619 | 1,407 1,407 i i 1,407 | Expected to spend in full
at this point
Council report to bring
Regeneration & Affordable ) 500 449 (51) 2.000 2.000 ) ) 2.000 forward programmed

Housing budgets subject to

approval

HRA Contingency
HRA Contingency 100 25 - (25) 100 100 - - 100 -

/] abed |



Treasury Management Update — Period 3 - 2020/21

Investments held as at 30" June 2020:

Appendix C

Borrower Deposit Rate From To Notice
£ %
Na“"”a'g’;’ eSIMINSIEr | 4,001,583 | 0.83% 05-Jul-19 03-Jul-20 -
Lancaéh”e County 3,000,000 | 0.95% 29-0ct-19 | 28-Oct-20 -
ouncil
Thurrock Council 3,000,000 0.83% 10-Oct-19 09-Oct-20 )
Lancashire County 3,000,000 1.10% 29-Oct-19 27-Oct-20 ;
Council
Lloyds Bank 1,000,000 1.10% 29-Nov-19 30-Nov-20 -
Lloyds Bank 1,000,000 1.10% 29-Nov-19 30-Nov-20 -
North Tyneside Council 5,000,000 1.20% 06-Dec-19 07-Jun-21 -
Bank of Scotland 2,000,000 1.10% 03-Jan-20 04-Jan-21 -
Bank of Scotland 2,000,000 1.10% 03-Jan-20 04-Jan-21 -
Coventry City Council 4,000,000 0.90% 29-Apr-20 28-Apr-21 -
Goldman Sachs 10,000,000 1.17% - - 180 day
Santander 10,000,000 1.00% - - 180 day
MMF — PSDF 8,533,000 0.29%* - - On call
MMF — Federated 2,000,000 0.80%* - - On call
Total 58.534 0.92 (avg)

* Interest rate fluctuates daily dependant on the funds investment portfolio, rate quoted is approximate 7 day average.

Page 78




External Borrowing as at 30™ June 2020:

Borrowing from PWLB

Loan Number Rate Principal Start Maturity
475875 8.875% 1,200,000 | 29/04/1995 25/04/2055
478326 8.000% 1,000,000 17/10/1996 17/10/2056
479541 7.375% 1,000,000 | 28/05/1997 28/05/2057
479950 6.750% 2,000,000 | 02/10/1997 03/09/2057
481087 5.625% 3,000,000 | 22/06/1998 22/06/2058
481641 4.500% 1,400,000 | 09/10/1998 09/10/2058
483694 4.875% 92,194 | 21/12/1999 18/10/2059
488835 5.000% 2,000,000 | 01/07/2004 01/07/2034
490815 4.250% 1,000,000 | 24/11/2005 24/05/2031
494265 4.430% 2,000,000 | 21/01/2008 01/01/2037
494742 4.390% 700,000 15/08/2008 15/08/2058
500759 3.520% 5,000,000 | 28/03/2012 28/03/2053
500758 3.510% 5,000,000 | 28/03/2012 28/03/2054
500757 3.510% 5,000,000 | 28/03/2012 28/03/2055
500761 3.510% 5,000,000 | 28/03/2012 28/03/2056
500755 3.500% 5,000,000 | 28/03/2012 28/03/2057
500756 3.500% 3,000,000 | 28/03/2012 28/03/2058
500753 3.500% 1,000,000 | 28/03/2012 28/03/2059
500760 3.490% 5,000,000 | 28/03/2012 28/03/2060
500762 3.490% 5,000,000 | 28/03/2012 28/03/2061
500754 3.480% 5,668,000 | 28/03/2012 28/03/2062
504499 3.230% 3,000,000 | 30/11/2015 30/11/2065

Total 63,060,194

Page 79




Page 80



Agenda Iltem 8

CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 25™ AUGUST 2020
CABINET
THURSDAY, 10™ SEPTEMBER 2020
REPORT OF THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR ASSETS AND FINANCE

LOCAL COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME 2021/22 ONWARDS

EXEMPT INFORMTION
None
PURPOSE

To consider proposals for the Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme for working age
customers for 2021/22.

RECOMMENDATION

That the planned review for the introduction of a banding scheme for Council Tax
Reduction be deferred until 2021 and that the current scheme for working age
customers continues to be aligned to Applicable Amounts with those of Housing
Benefit for 2021/22.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report updates Members on the proposals to review the Local Council Tax Reduction
Scheme (LCTRS) for implementation on 1 April 2021.

Proposals were submitted to this committee on 14™ November 2019 detailing a need to
review the current Council Tax Reduction Scheme along with three modelled options with
the aim to finalise a new scheme for consultation this autumn.

The proposal was to replace the current ‘traditional scheme’ for working age claimants which
was modelled in 2012 (and implemented in April 2013) based on the national Council Tax
Benefit and has had various amendments made annually to continue to align to legislation
changes in Housing Benefit.

The national scheme regulations continue for pensioners, which mirror the obsolete Council
Tax Benefit Scheme.

At the meeting, Members reviewed the proposals in detail and asked for further modelling to
be carried out (for up to 100% supported scheme) and reported back to committee in 2020.

Page 81



However, in light of the unprecedented situation following the COVID-19 Pandemic, it is now
suggested that the review be postponed until 2021 when the impact for the scheme will be
clearer. The potential longer term consequences of recession and unemployment on
demand for the scheme have yet to be experienced. It will be many months before we have
a clearer idea on how the economy has responded to the recovery process including any
lasting effects for individual businesses and their employees.

OPTIONS CONSIDERED

The current scheme for most working age customers bases an award on a maximum of 75%
of their Council Tax liability. Those who receive a Severe Disability Premium, or who have a
disabled child and those who receive a War Widows/War Disability Pension or Armed
Forces Compensation Scheme payment have their awards based on 100% of their liability,
known as Protected Groups.

Pensioners also continue, under the Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed
Requirements) (England) Regulations 2012, to have their awards based on 100% of their
Council Tax liability.

Members at both Cabinet and Corporate Scrutiny Committee meetings had previously
reviewed proposals to introduce a Banded Scheme, for implementation in 2021/22, starting
on 1 April 2021, which would remove much of the complexity associated with the current
scheme, whilst at the same time maintaining fairness and equality in the way in which
awards are distributed amongst Council Tax payers. Further reports were due to be
submitted to both Cabinet and Corporate Scrutiny, to include detailed cost forecasting and
scheme principles with the aim to finalise a new scheme for Public consultation in autumn
2020.

However, in light of emerging issues from the COVID-19 pandemic, the potential implications
for the scheme need to be considered.

The current ‘traditional scheme’ has largely been unaffected by the changes to the Welfare
system as announced by the government in response to the outbreak of COVID19. The
current scheme has been able to react quite quickly to the changes in claimant’s income,
therefore ensuring that they have not lost any Council Tax Reduction. For example, the
government in response to COVID19 announced that the standard allowance of Universal
Credit would increase by £1000pa. Under the current traditional LCTR scheme, this had the
effect of increasing the applicable amount by the equivalent UC increase and therefore had
no detrimental effect any entitlement to Council Tax Reduction. Under a banding scheme
this additional income could have had the effect of dropping a claimant into a lower council
tax income band and thereby reducing CTR entitlement between 20-25% depending on the
banding scheme percentage bands. In order to compensate each claimant for any loss to
their Council Tax Reduction, for each claim affected, the funding would have to be made
from the councils own budgets / Hardship Fund which would be insufficient to cope with the
additional demand.

In addition, there is still much uncertainty, particularly with the possible effects of Furlough
scheme which was recently amended to begin reducing the financial support to employers

Page 82



from August through to October in order to bring the scheme to a close. Employers will be
faced with the decision on what to do with their furloughed employees and may impact
further on the welfare system, resulting in further uncertainty around how the economy
recovers and when.

To attempt to model a new Council Tax Reduction Banding scheme at this point in time
would be a constant moving target. The number of LCTR applications received between
April-June was just over 1,100 with compared with the expected usual numbers of around
270-300 for the same period. Although not all of these claims have been entitled to LCTR,
the working age claim base has increased from 2613 in February to 3071 in July which has
also been reflected in an increase of council tax payers in receipt of UC by an equivalent
amount and is now 1,737 for July (1,254 at 31* March 2020). As a result, expenditure
across the scheme has also increased from £4.1m in 2019/20 to £4.5m (of which £2.1m
relates to pensioners).

There has also been a recent announcement that the managed migration of Universal Credit
is being delayed from December 2023 to September 2024. This will result in Universal
Credit continuing to be rolled out naturally for some time yet, therefore alleviating the
urgency to change the scheme at this present time. Workload has continued to remain
manageable but we will obviously need to continually monitor this as UC continues to roll out
—including the effects of the increase outlined above to feed into the proposed review during
2021.

As would be expected, during the second quarter of this year Revenues also saw an
increase in workload as a consequence of COVID19 resulting a in higher than usual number
of council tax bills being issued. The majority of this would be attributable to the increase in
applications for Council Tax Reduction claims received in Benefits. Overall the impact of UC
has remained fairly consistent since it was introduced in Tamworth in November 2017.

It should also be noted that the modelling has been delayed as Capita Software have yet to
fix an outstanding issue with the CTR Modelling Tool (which is expected during August) due
to the prioritisation of the response to Covid-19 over other work. However to model a brand
new scheme takes a considerable amount of time to develop and ongoing analysis of data
would also need to be carried out due to frequent changes both in claim circumstances and
caseload. Therefore to begin modelling a scheme now would result in the other work either
being severely delayed or not being completed at all. Unfortunately, we have not been in the
position to commence modelling the scheme due to priorities being directed to the rapid
increase in workload and other additional work created as a result of COVID19.

Moving to the proposed scheme for 2021/22, continued alignment of the scheme with
applicable amounts for the Housing Benefit scheme should be considered. This is not a
legislative requirement for those of working age, but a decision for this Council. This will
prevent confusion between schemes and reduce administrative burdens. Furthermore, it
would reflect any cost of living rises allowed by the Government.

In light of the proposals contained within this report, there are no proposed changes
to the scheme for 2020/21 other than the usual alignment with Housing benefit which

Page 83



is a minor change and did not require consultation. Council at its December meeting
will be asked to approve this approach.

As there are no other proposed changes for the scheme it will not be necessary to carry out
a formal consultation this year.

RESOURCE INPLICATIONS

Latest figures confirm that £4.55m has so far been awarded in Local Council Tax Reduction
(LCTR) for 2020/21, to both working age and pensioner customers of which £2.4m relates to
working age claimants. As indicated above, the live caseload has increased by
approximately 17% since January 2020, which is as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic. However many of the existing claims have also seen an increase in the amount
of LCTRS they receive due to loss of income.

LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND

The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government have confirmed that
consultation on the scheme is not required annually if it is not amended. Other than the
yearly alignment of applicable amounts to those of Housing Benefit, there are no other
proposed changes to the LCTR Scheme for 2021/22 and therefore no consultation shall be
required.

We have a legal duty to consult on the changes to our scheme. Schedule 1A of the Local
Government Finance act 1992, which was inserted by Local Government Finance act 1992

states that:

Before making a scheme, the authority must (in the following order):

a) consult any major precepting authority which has power to issue a precept to it;
b) publish a draft scheme in such manner as it thinks fit; and
c) consult such other persons as it considers are likely to have an interest in the

operation of the scheme.
EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

Full Equality Impact Assessments were considered and taken into account when the scheme
was initially finalised and agreed.

SUSTAINABILITY INFORMATION

Funding for the replacement of the previous Council Tax Benefit Scheme was changed from
an unrestricted reimbursement of Council Tax Benefit Subsidy to a restricted, pre-allocated
grant figure — which has subsequently been reduced year on year as part of the austerity
measures. The Council must be aware that there must be a contingency if, for instance, a
major local employer goes into administration.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Page 84



The Welfare Reform Act 2012

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/5/pdfs/ukpga 20120005 en.pdf

The Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed Requirements) (England) (Regulations)
2012

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2885/pdfs/uksi 20122885 en.pdf

REPORT AUTHOR

If Members would like further information or clarification prior to the meeting please contact
Jane Smith, Head of Benefits (Ext.355), Lynne Pugh, Assistant Director Finance (Ext.272),
or Stefan Garner, Executive Director Finance (Ext. 242).

Background Papers:- Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2020/21 Onwards and
Consultation Results, Council 10" December 2019

Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2021/22, Corporate
Scrutiny Committee, 14™ November 2019

Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2021/22, Cabinet 26™
September 2019

Page 85


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/5/pdfs/ukpga_20120005_en.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2885/pdfs/uksi_20122885_en.pdf

This page is intentionally left blank



/g8 abed

Corporate Scrutiny Work Plan

Work Plan 2020 - 2021

TARGET MEETING
DATE

SUBJECT

MEETING WHEN ITEM
ADDED TO WORK PLAN

25" August 2020

Quarter 1 2020/21 Quarterly Performance Report

25" August 2020

Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2021 onwards - revisit

November 2019 (date change
- June 2020)

25" August 2020

Solway Trading Company update

December 2019 (date added -
June 2020)

10™ December 2020

Review of Legal Services (post implementation)

November 2019

10™ December 2020

Quarter 2 2020/21 Quarterly Performance Report

3" February 2021

Quarter 3 2020/21 Quarterly Performance Report

Quarter 4 2020/21

Asset Management update

December 2019

Dates to be agreed

TBC Market tender progress Update August 2019
TBC Parking Toolkit review October 2019
TBC Housing Repairs & Investment Contract Review November 2019

6 Wal epuaby



g9g abed

TBC

Solway Trading Company Update (2x per year)

December 2019

TBC Gungate Masterplan January 2020
TBC Review of Cabinet decisions over previous 12 month period June 2020
(circulate to members post June meeting for comment)
TBC Review of Write-Offs July 2020
Upcoming Corporate Scrutiny Committee Meetings
25 August 2020

8 October 2020

19 November 2020
10 December 2020
3 February 2021
11 March 2021




Agenda Item 11

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Minutes , 15/07/2020 Corporate Scrutiny Committee
	Minutes , 30/01/2020 Corporate Scrutiny Committee

	7 Quarter One 2020/21 Performance Report
	Appendix 1 Quarter One 2020/21 Performance Report

	8 Local Council Tax Reduction Report 2021/22 (Scrutiny)
	9 Corporate Scrutiny Committee Work Plan
	11 Update On Solway (Tamworth) Limited

